



### User Guide for the Cisco Unity Connection Inbox Web Tool

Release 7.x Published August 25, 2008

#### **Americas Headquarters**

Cisco Systems, Inc. 170 West Tasman Drive San Jose, CA 95134-1706 USA http://www.cisco.com Tel: 408 526-4000 800 553-NETS (6387) Fax: 408 527-0883

Text Part Number: OL-16820-01

THE SPECIFICATIONS AND INFORMATION REGARDING THE PRODUCTS IN THIS MANUAL ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE WITHOUT NOTICE. ALL STATEMENTS, INFORMATION, AND RECOMMENDATIONS IN THIS MANUAL ARE BELIEVED TO BE ACCURATE BUT ARE PRESENTED WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED. USERS MUST TAKE FULL RESPONSIBILITY FOR THEIR APPLICATION OF ANY PRODUCTS.

THE SOFTWARE LICENSE AND LIMITED WARRANTY FOR THE ACCOMPANYING PRODUCT ARE SET FORTH IN THE INFORMATION PACKET THAT SHIPPED WITH THE PRODUCT AND ARE INCORPORATED HEREIN BY THIS REFERENCE. IF YOU ARE UNABLE TO LOCATE THE SOFTWARE LICENSE OR LIMITED WARRANTY, CONTACT YOUR CISCO REPRESENTATIVE FOR A COPY.

The Cisco implementation of TCP header compression is an adaptation of a program developed by the University of California, Berkeley (UCB) as part of UCB's public domain version of the UNIX operating system. All rights reserved. Copyright © 1981, Regents of the University of California.

NOTWITHSTANDING ANY OTHER WARRANTY HEREIN, ALL DOCUMENT FILES AND SOFTWARE OF THESE SUPPLIERS ARE PROVIDED "AS IS" WITH ALL FAULTS. CISCO AND THE ABOVE-NAMED SUPPLIERS DISCLAIM ALL WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, THOSE OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NONINFRINGEMENT OR ARISING FROM A COURSE OF DEALING, USAGE, OR TRADE PRACTICE.

IN NO EVENT SHALL CISCO OR ITS SUPPLIERS BE LIABLE FOR ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, LOST PROFITS OR LOSS OR DAMAGE TO DATA ARISING OUT OF THE USE OR INABILITY TO USE THIS MANUAL, EVEN IF CISCO OR ITS SUPPLIERS HAVE BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.

CCDE, CCENT, Cisco Eos, Cisco Lumin, Cisco Nexus, Cisco StadiumVision, the Cisco logo, DCE, and Welcome to the Human Network are trademarks; Changing the Way We Work, Live, Play, and Learn is a service mark; and Access Registrar, Aironet, AsyncOS, Bringing the Meeting To You, Catalyst, CCDA, CCDP, CCIE, CCIP, CCNA, CCNP, CCSP, CCVP, Cisco, the Cisco Certified Internetwork Expert logo, Cisco IOS, Cisco Press, Cisco Systems, Cisco Systems Capital, the Cisco Systems logo, Cisco Unity, Collaboration Without Limitation, EtherFast, EtherSwitch, Event Center, Fast Step, Follow Me Browsing, FormShare, GigaDrive, HomeLink, Internet Quotient, IOS, iPhone, iQ Expertise, the iQ logo, iQ Net Readiness Scorecard, iQuick Study, IronPort, the IronPort logo, LightStream, Linksys, MediaTone, MeetingPlace, MGX, Networking Academy, Network Registrar, PCNow, PIX, PowerPanels, ProConnect, ScriptShare, SenderBase, SMARTnet, Spectrum Expert, StackWise, The Fastest Way to Increase Your Internet Quotient, TransPath, WebEx, and the WebEx logo are registered trademarks of Cisco Systems, Inc. and/or its affiliates in the United States and certain other countries.

All other trademarks mentioned in this document or Website are the property of their respective owners. The use of the word partner does not imply a partnership relationship between Cisco and any other company. (0805R)

Any Internet Protocol (IP) addresses used in this document are not intended to be actual addresses. Any examples, command display output, and figures included in the document are shown for illustrative purposes only. Any use of actual IP addresses in illustrative content is unintentional and coincidental.

User Guide for the Cisco Unity Connection Inbox Web Tool (Release 7.x) © 2008 Cisco Systems, Inc. All rights reserved.



### CONTENTS

#### The Cisco Unity Inbox Web Tool 1

About the Cisco Unity Inbox Web Tool **1** Accessing the Cisco Unity Inbox Web Tool **1** 

#### Working with the Media Master in the Cisco Unity Inbox Web Tool 3

About the Media Master 3

Using Sound Files in Your Recordings 4

Changing Your Playback and Recording Devices 5

Changing Message Playback Volume When Computer Speakers Are Your Playback Device 6 Changing Message Playback Speed When Computer Speakers Are Your Playback Device 6 Media Master Keyboard Shortcuts 6

#### Managing Messages 7

- Using the Address Book 7
- Sending Voice Messages 8
- Checking Messages 9
- Replying to Voice Messages **10**
- Forwarding Voice Messages 11
- Deleting Messages 12
- Managing Receipts 13

#### Managing the Deleted Items Folder 15

### Managing the Size of Your Mailbox 17

About Mailbox Size 17

Reasons Your Mailbox May Fill Up Quickly **17** 

Message Retention Policy May Not Be Enforced **17** 

Deleted Items and Nondelivery Receipts Are Included in Total Mailbox Size 18

Total Message Size Includes Original When Messages Are Forwarded 18

Total Message Size Includes Attachments **18** 

Tips for Managing the Size of Your Mailbox **18** 

#### Index

Contents

iv



# The Cisco Unity Inbox Web Tool

- About the Cisco Unity Inbox Web Tool, page 1
- Accessing the Cisco Unity Inbox Web Tool, page 1

# **About the Cisco Unity Inbox Web Tool**

The Cisco Unity Inbox web tool contains voice messages and any message receipts you receive.

By clicking the applicable icon on each Cisco Unity Inbox page, you can sort and delete the messages on the page, and compose and listen to a voice message. You use the Media Master to play and record messages.

The Cisco Unity Inbox does not refresh the display automatically; you must click the Refresh Messages icon to check for new messages.

By default, ten messages are presented at a time, though you can change the number for each session by clicking a different value in the Messages Per Page list. When the number of messages in your Cisco Unity Inbox exceeds the value specified in the Messages Per Page list, click the arrows or the page number at the bottom of the page to navigate to additional Cisco Unity Inbox pages.

Talk to your Connection administrator if you experience performance or sound quality issues when playing messages through multimedia speakers in a low-bandwidth environment.

Access to the Cisco Unity Inbox web tool is provided through the Cisco Personal Communications Assistant (PCA) website.



The Internet browser on your computer must be set up to use the Cisco PCA and the Cisco Unity Inbox. Although it is likely that your Connection administrator has already done so for the computer that you use at the office, if your organization offers remote access to the Cisco PCA, you must set up the installed browser(s) on any other computer that you plan to use for accessing the website. Ask your Connection administrator for instructions.

# **Accessing the Cisco Unity Inbox Web Tool**

This section contains two procedures:

- To Access the Cisco Unity Inbox, page 2
- To Access Help for the Cisco Unity Inbox, page 2

#### **To Access the Cisco Unity Inbox**

Step 1	Go to the Cisco PCA logon page at http:// <cisco connection="" server="" unity="">/ciscopca. (The URL is</cisco>
	case sensitive.)

### Ø

**Timesaver** Bookmark the Cisco PCA URL, so you do not have to enter the web address each time you want to access the Cisco Unity Inbox.

Step 2 Enter your username and password.If you cannot remember your Cisco PCA password, contact your Connection administrator for assistance.

Step 3 Click Log In.

- Step 4 On the Cisco PCA Home page, click the Cisco Unity Inbox link.
- Step 5 When you are finished, click Log Out in the top right corner of any Cisco Unity Inbox page.

#### To Access Help for the Cisco Unity Inbox

- **Step 1** On any Cisco Unity Inbox page, click the **Help** menu.
- **Step 2** From the Help menu, click the applicable link:

Contents	Provides a list of topics in Help.
Index	Provides a Help index.
This Page	Provides the Help topic applicable to the page you are viewing.

For help on an icon, hover the mouse over the icon until a tooltip is displayed.



# Working with the Media Master in the Cisco Unity Inbox Web Tool

- About the Media Master, page 3
- Using Sound Files in Your Recordings, page 4
- Changing Your Playback and Recording Devices, page 5
- Changing Message Playback Volume When Computer Speakers Are Your Playback Device, page 6
- Changing Message Playback Speed When Computer Speakers Are Your Playback Device, page 6
- Media Master Keyboard Shortcuts, page 6

# About the Media Master

The Media Master appears in voice messages in the Cisco Unity Inbox web tool. By clicking the controls, you play and record messages with either your phone or your computer microphone and speaker(s).

You also use the Media Master to change the recording and playback devices you use while working with the Cisco Unity Inbox, and to change playback volume and playback speed for all messages you hear through your computer speaker(s).

Updates to Media Master settings are saved per user, per computer. If you also use another computer to access the Media Master (for example, a computer at home), you need to update the Media Master settings on the second computer as well.



1	Options menu	7	Stop
2	Recording/playback progress	8	Pause
3	Record list	9	Play
4	Help menu	10	Volume control
5	Playback speed control	11	Playback list
6	Record		

Table 1 describes the options available on the Media Master Help menu (4 in Figure 1).

#### Table 1 Help Menu

Option	Description
Media Master Help	Open Media Master Help.
About Media Master	Display Media Master version and configuration information.

# **Using Sound Files in Your Recordings**

The Options menu on the Media Master (1 in Figure 1) allows you to work with other sound (WAV) files in your recordings. Table 2 describes the available options.

#### Table 2 Options Menu

Option	Description
Open File	Open a WAV file saved on your computer to play on the selected playback device.
Save Recording As	Save a recording as a WAV file to a location that you specify.

# **Changing Your Playback and Recording Devices**

You can choose the devices that you use for playing and recording messages while working with the Cisco Unity Inbox web tool:

Playback devices	• Phone—Cisco Unity Connection calls you, and you listen through the phone handset or through the speakerphone speaker.
	• Computer speakers (if available).
Recording devices	• Phone—Cisco Unity Connection calls you, and you speak into the phone handset or into the speakerphone microphone.
	• Computer microphone (if available).

The phone offers the best sound quality for recordings.

#### To Change Your Playback or Recording Device

- **Step 1** In the Cisco Unity Inbox web tool, open a voice message.
- Step 2 On the Media Master, from the Options menu, click Playback & Recording.
- **Step 3** Set the applicable device:

Playback Device	Choose the phone or the computer.
<b>Recording Device</b>	Choose the phone or the computer.

**Step 4** If you set the phone as your playback or recording device, in the Active Phone Number section, choose your primary extension or enter another phone number. This is the number that Connection calls for you to listen or record by phone.



- p Once you have set the active phone number, you can choose devices in the Playback and Record lists on the Media Master (11 and 3 in Figure 1). The lists offer a quick way to change devices, and your selections are saved for all Cisco Unity Inbox pages that contain the Media Master.
- **Step 5** Choose the performance setting that best suits your system:

Play Message While Downloading	Play messages as they download to Connection.		
Download Complete Message Before Playing	<ul> <li>Download messages completely before they are played.</li> <li>Tip For the best performance and quality, we recommend that users who use Connection in a low-bandwidth environment (for example, with a slow modem) download messages completely before playing them.</li> </ul>		

Step 6 Click OK.

Г

# Changing Message Playback Volume When Computer Speakers Are Your Playback Device

The procedure in this section changes the playback volume for all messages played in the Cisco Unity Inbox web tool when your computer speakers are set as the playback device in the Media Master.

Note

The volume that you set in the following procedure does not affect the volume of the Cisco Unity Connection conversation, recorded names, or user greetings.

To Change Message Playback Volume When Computer Speakers Are Your Playback Device

- **Step 1** In the Cisco Unity Inbox web tool, open a voice message.
- Step 2 On the Media Master, click and drag the Volume slider to decrease or increase volume, as applicable.

# Changing Message Playback Speed When Computer Speakers Are Your Playback Device

The procedure in this section changes the playback speed for all messages played in the Cisco Unity Inbox web tool when your computer speakers are set as the playback device in the Media Master.

Note

The speed that you set in the following procedure does not affect the speed of the Cisco Unity Connection conversation, recorded names, or user greetings.

To Change Message Playback Speed When Computer Speakers Are Your Playback Device

- **Step 1** In the Cisco Unity Inbox web tool, open a voice message.
- Step 2 On the Media Master, click and drag the Speed slider for slower or faster playback, as applicable.
- Step 3 Click Play to save the speed setting for all messages that you hear through your computer speakers.

# **Media Master Keyboard Shortcuts**

- Alt-O to open the Options menu.
- Alt-H to open the Help menu.



# **Managing Messages**

- Using the Address Book, page 7
- Sending Voice Messages, page 8
- Checking Messages, page 9
- Replying to Voice Messages, page 10
- Forwarding Voice Messages, page 11
- Deleting Messages, page 12
- Managing Receipts, page 13

# **Using the Address Book**

The Cisco Unity Inbox Address Book contains all Cisco Unity Connection users, and private and system distribution lists to whom you can send voice messages.

Depending on how Connection is set up at your organization, the Address Book may also contain remote contacts to whom you can send voice messages. (Remote contacts are users on remote voice messaging systems who are not in the directory.)



- Step 1 In the New Message dialog box, click the Address Book icon below the menu bar.
- **Step 2** In the Find Names dialog box, click the applicable tab to specify the search scope.
- **Step 3** In field, enter the applicable information about the user, private or system distribution list, or remote contact to whom you want to address the message.
- Step 4 Click Find.
- Step 5 In the list of possible matches, click the recipient that you want to receive the message, then click To, Cc, or Bcc. (To listen to the recorded name of a user or list, click the speaker icon.)

Or

If you do not see the recipient you want, try entering different search criteria, then click **Find** to search again.

	<u>)</u> Tip	When a search returns more matches than expected, increase the value in the Rows Per Page list to view as many matches as possible. To limit the search, enter more complete search criteria. Then click Find to search again.
Step 6	Click	Close.

# **Sending Voice Messages**

You can send voice messages to Cisco Unity Connection users, e-mail addresses, and private and system distribution lists.

To address messages to Connection users, enter their names. (You cannot address messages to users by entering their extensions.) Messages addressed to e-mail addresses are sent as sound (WAV) files attached to e-mail messages.

The following special delivery options are available:

Mark Urgent	The message is sent before regular messages.
Mark Private	Alerts the recipient to treat the message confidentially. Connection users cannot forward private messages by phone or from the Cisco Unity Inbox.
Request a Heard Message Receipt for This Message	You are notified when the recipient opens the message. (Note that you may not be able to receive all types of receipts, even though the Cisco Unity Inbox allows you to request them. Ask your Connection administrator whether Connection is set up to send receipts to users.)

Note that Connection does not save copies of the messages you send.

 $\mathcal{P}$ Tip

When your mailbox exceeds its size quota, you may not be able to send messages. (See the "Managing the Size of Your Mailbox" chapter.)

#### To Send a Voice Message

- Step 1 In the Cisco Unity Inbox web tool, click the New Message icon below the menu bar.
- **Step 2** Address the message in one of the following two ways:
  - Enter usernames and/or e-mail addresses in the To, Cc, and Bcc fields, as applicable.

Separate multiple names and addresses with semicolons (;). For e-mail addresses, enter the full e-mail address of the recipient (for example, <name>@<domain>.com).

• Click **To**, **Cc**, or **Bcc** to select recipients in the Address Book. (See also the "Using the Address Book" section on page 7.)

Step 3 If needed, click the Check Names icon below the menu bar, then search for and select your recipients to resolve name conflicts. (When names are resolved, they appear as links above the To, Cc, or Bcc fields.)

	$\mathbf{\rho}$		
	Tip	Click a link to remove an unwanted addressee.	
Step 4	In the	Subject field, type the subject of the message.	
Step 5	Choose one or more special delivery options, as applicable.		
Step 6	On the Media Master, click <b>Record</b> and record the message.		
Step 7	tep 7 When you finish recording, click Stop.		
	To rev the me	iew your message before you send it, click <b>Play</b> on the Media Master, or click <b>Record</b> to rerecord essage.	
Step 8	Click	Send.	

# **Checking Messages**

Periodically click the Refresh Messages icon to check for new messages in the Cisco Unity Inbox web tool. After you have listened to or opened a new message, you may need to refresh again to see the New Message icon disappear.

The From field of a message contains either the name of a Cisco Unity Connection user or "Unity Connection Messaging System" A message from "Unity Connection Messaging System" means that the caller was not a Connection user or was not logged on as a user when the message was left. (You cannot reply to messages from such callers.)

The Subject field displays the phone number of the caller, if it is available.

#### **To Check Messages**

**Step 1** In the Cisco Unity Inbox, click the speaker icon next to the message to play it. (Click the icon again to stop playback.)

#### Or

Click the name of the sender to open the message in a new window, then click **Play** on the Media Master.



The Cisco Unity Inbox cannot display attachments (such as documents, spreadsheets, text, or faxes) or text that the sender included in the message. You must use the applicable application to display attachments or text.

Previous Message	Open the previous message.		
Next Message	Open the next message.		
Reply (Resend original message when responding to an NDR)	Respond with a voice message to the sender. (Available only for messages from other Connection users.)		
Reply to All	Respond with a voice message to all Connection users who received the message.		
Forward	Send the message to another Connection user and/or distribution list. (Note that you cannot forward any message that is marked private.)		
Delete	Delete the message.         Tip       To archive messages before deleting them, save them as WAV files to your hard disk. On the Media Master in an open message, use the Save Recording As option on the Options menu.		
Save	Save the message and any changes, such as marking the message as new or changing the subject, and return to the Cisco Unity Inbox.		
Mark Message as Unheard (Mark Message as Unread for faxes and NDRs)	Check this check box to save the message as new. (This may trigger the message waiting indicator on your phone.)		
Close	Close the message without saving changes, and return to the Cisco Unity Inbox.		

**Step 2** Use the following icons or Message menu options to manage voice messages:

# **Replying to Voice Messages**

You can reply to voice messages from other Cisco Unity Connection users. You can respond to just the sender, and you can add recipients, such as users, e-mail addresses, and private and system distribution lists. You can also respond to nondelivery receipts (NDRs) by resending the original message.

A message from "Unity Connection Messaging System" means that the caller was not a Connection user or was not logged on as a user when the message was left. You cannot reply to messages from such callers.

The following special delivery options are available:

Mark Urgent	The message is sent before regular messages.	
Mark Private	Alerts the recipient to treat the message confidentially. Connection users cannot forward private messages by phone or from the Cisco Unity Inbox.	
Request a Heard Message Receipt for This Message	You are notified when the recipient opens the message. (Note that you may not be able to receive all types of receipts, even though the Cisco Unity Inbox allows you to request them. Ask your Connection administrator whether the system is set up to send receipts to users.)	

Note that Connection does not save copies of the replies you send.

#### To Reply to a Voice Message

- **Step 1** In the Cisco Unity Inbox, click the name of the sender.
- Step 2 In the open message, click Reply, Reply to All, or Resend, as applicable.
- **Step 3** Address the message to additional recipients in one of the following two ways:
  - Enter usernames and/or e-mail addresses in the To, Cc, and Bcc fields, as applicable.

Separate multiple names and addresses with semicolons (;). For e-mail addresses, enter the full e-mail address of the recipient (for example, <name>@<domain>.com).

- Click **To**, **Cc**, or **Bcc** to select recipients in the Address Book. (See also the "Using the Address Book" section on page 7.)
- **Step 4** If needed, click the **Check Names** icon below the menu bar, then search for and select your recipients to resolve name conflicts. (When the names are resolved, they appear as links above the To, Cc, or Bcc fields.)

# Image: Tip Click a link to remove an unwanted addressee.

- **Step 5** Edit the Subject field, as applicable.
- **Step 6** Choose one or more special delivery options, as applicable.
- Step 7 On the Media Master control bar, click **Record** and record the message.
- **Step 8** When you finish recording, click **Stop**.

To review your message before you send it, click **Play** on the Media Master, or click **Record** to rerecord the message.

Step 9 Click Send.

### Forwarding Voice Messages

You can forward voice messages to other Cisco Unity Connection users, e-mail addresses, and private and system distribution lists. Messages that are marked private by you or by another Connection user cannot be forwarded to anyone from the Cisco Unity Inbox web tool.

You can forward a voice message as is or record an introduction that plays before the forwarded message. The following special delivery options are available:

Mark Urgent	The message is sent before regular messages.	
Mark Private	Alerts the recipient to treat the message confidentially. Connection users cannot forward private messages by phone or from the Cisco Unity Inbox.	
Request a Heard Message Receipt for This Message	<ul> <li>You are notified when the recipient opens the message.</li> <li>Note You may not be able to receive all types of receipts, even though the Cisco Unity Inbox allows you to request them. Ask your Connection administrator whether the system is set up to send receipts to users.</li> </ul>	

Note that Connection does not save copies of the messages you forward.

#### **To Forward a Voice Message**

- **Step 1** In the Cisco Unity Inbox, click the name of the sender.
- **Step 2** In the open message, click **Forward**.
- **Step 3** Address the message in one of the following two ways:
  - Enter usernames and/or e-mail addresses in the To, Cc, and Bcc fields, as applicable.

Separate multiple names and addresses with semicolons (;). For e-mail addresses, enter the full e-mail address of the recipient (for example, <name>@<domain>.com).

- Click **To**, **Cc**, or **Bcc** to select recipients in the Address Book. (See also the "Using the Address Book" section on page 7.)
- **Step 4** If needed, click the **Check Names** icon below the menu bar, then search for and select your recipients to resolve name conflicts. (When the names are resolved, they appear as links above the To, Cc, or Bcc fields.)

<u>}</u> Tin

You can click a link to remove an unwanted addressee.

- **Step 5** Choose one or more special delivery options, as applicable.
- Step 6 On the Media Master, click Record and record an introduction, if applicable.
- **Step 7** When you finish recording, click **Stop**.

To review your introduction before you send the forwarded message, click **Play** on the Media Master, or click **Record** to rerecord the message.

Step 8 Click Send.

### **Deleting Messages**

You can delete a message or group of messages directly from the Cisco Unity Inbox web tool, or you can delete a message after you have opened it.

#### To Delete a Message

**Step 1** In the Cisco Unity Inbox, check the check box to the left of the message that you want to delete. You can check multiple check boxes to delete more than one message at a time.

Or

Click the Select All Rows icon below the menu bar to mark all messages on the page for deletion.

- Step 2 Click the Delete Selected Rows icon below the menu bar.
- **Step 3** When prompted, click **OK**.

Alternatively, you can delete a message by opening the message, clicking Delete, and clicking OK.

# **Managing Receipts**

As you work with Cisco Unity Connection, you may manage several different types of receipts, which are described in Table 1. Ask your Connection administrator which receipts the system is set up to use.

TypeDescriptionReturnReceipt you request when you are sending a message by phone.ReadReceipt message that informs you when the recipient opens or plays your<br/>message.Nondelivery (NDR)Receipt message that informs you when your message could not be delivered<br/>to the intended recipient.

Table 1 Cisco Unity Connection Receipts

In the Cisco Unity Inbox web tool, Connection displays receipts along with voice messages. You open receipts in the Cisco Unity Inbox in the same way as voice messages. You can only save or delete receipts; you cannot reply to or forward them.

With receipts, you can view the recipients who received the message you sent and/or played it. With NDRs, the Cisco Unity Inbox identifies the recipients whose mailboxes did not accept your message.

As you view an NDR, you can use the Media Master to play the original message and you can resend it to the recipient(s) who did not receive it. You can record an introduction, modify the recipient list, and change delivery options when resending a message. Once you resend a message, the NDR is not automatically deleted as it is when you resend a message by phone. Instead, the NDR remains in the Cisco Unity Inbox until you delete it.

#### **To Manage Receipts**

- **Step 1** In the Cisco Unity Inbox, click the name of the sender to open the receipt.
- Step 2 Use the following icons or Message menu options to manage the receipt:

Previous Message	Open the previous message.	
Next Message	Open the next message.	
Resend Original Message (for NDRs only)	Resend original message to recipients who failed to receive it. You can record an introduction, modify the recipient list, and change delivery options.	
Delete	Delete the receipt.	
Save	Save the receipt and any changes, such as marking the message as new or changing the subject, and return to the Cisco Unity Inbox.	
Mark Message as Unread	Check this check box to save the message as new.	
Close	Cancel the message without saving changes, and return to the Cisco Unity Inbox. The receipt is marked read.	

Managing Receipts

User Guide for the Cisco Unity Connection Inbox Web Tool (Release 7.x)



# **Managing the Deleted Items Folder**

When you delete messages from the Cisco Unity Inbox web tool, Cisco Unity Connection saves them in the Deleted Items folder. You can listen to deleted voice messages; retrieve the deleted messages so that you can listen to them, reply to or forward them; restore them to the Cisco Unity Inbox; or delete them permanently.

#### **To Manage Deleted Items**

- Step 1 In the Cisco Unity Inbox, click the View Deleted Items icon below the menu bar.
- **Step 2** On the Deleted Items page, do any of the following tasks:

Listen to a voice message	Click the speaker icon next to the message.
	Or
	Open the message and play it by using the Media Master.
Reply to or forward a message	Open the message, and click the applicable icon.
Restore a message to the Cisco Unity Inbox	Check the check box to the left of the message, and click the <b>Restore Selected Rows to Inbox</b> icon below the menu bar.
Permanently delete a message	Check the check box to the left of the message, click the <b>Delete</b> <b>Selected Rows</b> icon below the menu bar, then click <b>OK</b> .

User Guide for the Cisco Unity Connection Inbox Web Tool (Release 7.x)



# **Managing the Size of Your Mailbox**

- About Mailbox Size, page 17
- Reasons Your Mailbox May Fill Up Quickly, page 17
- Tips for Managing the Size of Your Mailbox, page 18

# **About Mailbox Size**

A full mailbox can affect the speed at which Cisco Unity Connection processes your messages. When you access the Cisco Unity Inbox web tool, Connection notifies you when your mailbox is:

- Almost full.
- Full and you can no longer send new messages.
- Full and you can no longer send or receive new messages.

Your Connection administrator sets the storage limits for your mailbox. Exceeding those limits can prevent you from sending and receiving messages.



Broadcast messages are not included in your total mailbox size.

# **Reasons Your Mailbox May Fill Up Quickly**

If you feel that your Cisco Unity Connection mailbox fills up more quickly than you expect, the reasons listed below may explain why. (Your Connection administrator specifies the size of your mailbox.)

### Message Retention Policy May Not Be Enforced

By default, Connection does not automatically delete messages once they reach a certain age. This means that unless your Connection administrator set up the system to enforce a message-retention policy, you are responsible for managing the size of your mailbox by periodically reviewing your saved messages and either moving, archiving, or deleting them permanently.

If Connection is set up to enforce a message-retention policy, ask your Connection administrator how long the system stores your messages before permanently deleting them. You can then plan to archive or move important messages ahead of time. Connection does not indicate when a message-retention policy is enforced, nor does it warn you before message are permanently deleted as a result of such a policy.

### **Deleted Items and Nondelivery Receipts Are Included in Total Mailbox Size**

Messages in the Deleted Items folder in the Cisco Unity Inbox web tool are included in the total mailbox size. In addition, when you receive nondelivery receipts (NDRs) for messages that you send, your mailbox can quickly increase in size—especially when original messages included large attachments.

### **Total Message Size Includes Original When Messages Are Forwarded**

You may receive messages that have been forwarded many times over, which increases message size. The original message plus all recorded introductions that were added during forwarding equal the total message size. As a result, your mailbox can exceed its limit, even though you may have relatively few messages stored in it.

### **Total Message Size Includes Attachments**

You may receive messages that contain attached files such as spreadsheets, documents, and faxes, and pictures. The message plus all attached files equal the total message size. As a result, your mailbox can exceed its limit, even though you may have relatively few messages stored in it.

# **Tips for Managing the Size of Your Mailbox**

The following tips can help you make more room in your mailbox:

- Delete messages, including messages in the Deleted Items folder in the Cisco Unity Inbox web tool, if applicable.
- Archive message recordings before deleting them by saving them as WAV files to your hard disk. In the Cisco Unity Inbox, use the Save Recording As option on the Options menu in the Media Master.
- Move voice messages to a folder on your hard disk before deleting them from the Cisco Unity Inbox.



### INDEX

full mailbox notifications of 17 reasons for 17

### Α

accessing Cisco Unity Inbox web tool 1addressing voice messages with Address Book 7attachments, effect on mailbox size 18

### С

changing
playback device 5
recording device 5
speaker playback speed for all messages 6
speaker playback volume for all messages 6
checking messages 9
Cisco PCA, access to Cisco Unity Inbox web tool 1
Cisco Personal Communications Assistant. See Cisco PCA
Cisco Unity Inbox web tool
about 1

accessing 1

### D

deleted items, effect on mailbox size 18 Deleted Items folder 15 deleting messages 12

### F

Γ

forwarded messages, effect on mailbox size **18** forwarding voice messages **11** 

icon, Refresh Messages 9

### Κ

keyboard shortcuts, Media Master 6

### Μ

```
mailbox
   notifications of full 17
   reasons for filling up 17
   tips for managing size 18
managing
   deleted items in folder 15
    mailbox size, tips for 18
   receipts 13
Media Master
    about 3
   changing recording and playback devices 5
   changing speaker playback speed for all messages 6
   changing speaker playback volume for all
   messages 6
   illustration of 4
    keyboard shortcuts 6
   using sound files in recordings 4
message retention policy, effect on mailbox size 17
```

#### messages

checking 9 deleting 12

### Ν

NDR. *See* nondelivery receipts nondelivery receipts about 13 effect on mailbox size 18 managing 13

### Ρ

playback, changing device 5
private delivery
for forwarding voice messages 11
for replying to voice messages 10
for sending voice messages 8
private lists, sending voice messages to 8

### R

read receipts, about 13 receipts managing 13 types of 13 recording, changing device 5 recordings, using sound files in 4 Refresh Messages icon 9 remote contacts in Address Book 7 replying to voice messages 10 retrieving deleted items 15 return receipts, about 13

### S

sending to remote contacts 7 voice messages 8 shortcuts, keyboard for Media Master 6 sound files, using in recordings 4 special delivery options for forwarding voice messages 11 for replying to messages 10 for sending voice messages 8 speed, changing speaker playback for all messages 6 system distribution lists, sending voice messages to 8

### U

Unity Connection Messaging System, replying to messages from 10 urgent delivery for forwarding voice messages 11 for replying to voice messages 10 for sending voice messages 8

### V

voice messages
addressing with Address Book 7
checking 9
forwarding 11
replying to 10
sending 8
volume, changing speaker playback for all messages 6